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NMED RESPONSE TO RIVER STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) QUESTIONS 

RFP # 40-667-5000-23110 
July 17, 2014 

 
# Applicant’s Question NMED’s Response 
1. Do the proposals need to 

be at the State Purchasing 
Division by 3:00pm on 
July 31, or can they just be 
postmarked that day? 

The proposals need to be at the State Purchasing Division 
by 3:00pm, July 31, 2014.  Late proposals will not be 
accepted. 

2. Do project areas have to be 
located entirely in New 
Mexico? 

Yes. The funding for the River Stewardship Program (RSP) 
is state funding that must be used in New Mexico. 

3. How many RSP projects 
does the New Mexico 
Environment Department 
(NMED) anticipate 
funding through this RFP?  

NMED estimates that between eight and twelve projects will 
be funded through this RFP.  

4. What is the project amount 
that NMED anticipates 
funding? 

In past years, NMED utilized state funds for river restoration 
projects with budgets ranging from $37,000 to $518,000. 

5. Does “stream habitat” 
mean aquatic habitat only? 

No. It means instream, on the banks, on the flood plain, 
and/or within riparian areas along streams and rivers as 
stated in Section I.C on Page 2 of the RFP. 

6. Are ephemeral streams 
eligible for RSP projects or 
is NMED limiting the 
funding to only perennial 
streams? Do the waters 
have to be navigable? 

NMED is not limiting the use of the funding to perennial 
streams: intermittent and ephemeral streams are eligible. 
The waters do not have to be navigable. 

7. Can RSP funds be used for 
design of projects that are 
not constructed?  

No. The legislative language says “to design and 
construct…” as stated in Section I.B on Page 1 of the RFP. 

8. Can we do a planning 
project? 

Yes, but only if the project also includes implementation of 
the plan. A plan cannot be in the end product of a project 
because the enabling legislation states “to design and 
construct projects…” 

9. What if the plan is only 
partially implemented by 
the project? 

The Offeror should propose work that is in line with the 
enabling legislation and the limitations of the funding source.

10. How important is it to 
work on root causes of 
poor water quality and 
stream habitat?  

It is important to work on root causes.  NMED recognizes 
that there are additional root causes of poor water quality and 
stream habitat that originate in upland areas and are not 
eligible for project funding under the RSP.  

11.  Is bank stabilization on an 
ephemeral stream eligible 
for funding? 

Yes, if it improves surface water quality or stream habitat. 
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12. Can projects be on private 

land? 
Yes, projects on private land can be considered, but only if 
they do not violate the state antidonation clause. There must 
substantial public benefit in order to utilize the funding on 
private lands.   

13. Are recreation components 
eligible for funding within 
a project, for example: 
trails, hunter/fisher access, 
or specifically providing 
accessibility for disabled 
people to fish? 
 

Recreational components are eligible if they improve water 
quality or stream habitat. 

14. Are the priority areas 
weighted equally? 

Yes. 

15. Are burn areas before 2011 
important? 

Burn areas before 2011 are not included in the RSP priority 
areas. 

16. Is it a priority to improve 
water quality in impaired 
waters that are on the 
Clean Water Act 
303(d)/305(b) list? 
 
 

No, listed impaired waters are not specifically identified as 
priority areas for the RSP. Such waters may be more 
straightforward for Offerors to describe in terms of problem 
identification and solutions, but there is not a specific 
preference in the RFP for projects that address those 
impairments. 

17. The priorities map in 
Appendix A shows red and 
blue rivers. Are the red 
lines priorities? 

The red lines indicate impaired waters, but they are on the 
map for reference, not as priorities. 

18. What are the black lines on 
the map in Appendix A of 
the RFP? 

The black lines delineate 8-digit Hydrologic Unit Codes 
(HUC)s They are the boundaries of watersheds. Offerors can 
use these lines and the wildfire lines to determine whether a 
proposed project is in a watershed affected by the 2011 to 
2013 wildfires. 

19. Is the lower Rio Grande a 
priority area? What is the 
infiltration gallery on the 
Appendix A map along the 
Lower Rio Grande? 

The urban areas along the Rio Grande are priority areas. The 
area identified on the map as an infiltration gallery is located 
at the NM Highway Department Scenic View Rest Area. 

20. The RFP says that 
government entities cannot 
pay operational expenses 
or salaries with severance 
tax bonds. Does that apply 
to Pueblos?  

Yes. This comes from the rules for severance tax bond 
disbursements at 2.61.6 NMAC and it refers to government 
employee salaries. 
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21. If a Pueblo submits a cover 

letter signed by the Pueblo 
Governor, would you 
prefer the letter to be part 
of the proposal or part of 
the letters of support?  

Offerors should put letters signed by the Pueblo Governor 
(or any other officials) in Binder 3 with the letters of support.

22. Please clarify Paragraph 
II.C.36 “Leveraging of 
Federal Funds” on Page 20 
of the RFP.  The paragraph 
first states that NMED 
intends to use River 
Stewardship Program 
funds to match federal 
Clean Water Act grants, 
but then prohibits the 
Offeror from claiming the 
funds "as match for any 
type of federal funding." 
 

Paragraph II.C.36 on Page 20 of the RFP means that NMED 
will use of the funding to match the Clean Water Act grants 
that NMED receives from US EPA, including Non-Point 
Source Program grants and Wetlands Program Development 
grants.  
 
Because NMED will be reporting the RSP funding as match 
to US EPA, the RSP Contractors will not be able to claim the 
funding as match for a federal grant. 

23. Could a City use RSP 
Funds as match to leverage 
a federal grant? 

No, a city will not be able to use RSP funds as match 
because NMED will use the funds as match for a federal 
grant. 
 

24. Will funds identified in the 
Other Funds column of a 
project budget be used by 
NMED as match for their 
federal grants? 

No. 

25. Where can I find the latest 
watershed restoration 
action strategy and are 
there any other 
NMED/EPA planning 
documents that I can cite 
on my proposal? 

Paragraphs IV.E through IV.G on Page 27 of the RFP asks 
the Offeror to cite a planning document.  In order to find the 
most recent copy of a NMED-approved watershed based 
plan for your project area, please see: 
http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/swqb/wps/. Offerors can also 
cite other planning documents to support the problem 
statement, project area selection, and rational for project 
activities. Examples of other types of documents that could 
be cited include:  wetlands actions plans (NMED/SWQB 
website), total maximum daily loads (NMED/SWQB 
website);  agency resource management plans (e.g. US 
Forest Service or US Bureau of Land Management); county 
plans;  tribal plans; the NM Comprehensive Wildlife 
Conservation Strategy (NM Dept. of Game and Fish); and 
state or federal recovery plans for threatened and endangered 
animals and plants (NM Dept. of Game and Fish or US Fish 
and Wildlife Service). 

http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/swqb/wps/
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26. Is there any benefit to 

showing in-kind or other 
funds in the budget? 

Yes, it could add to the value of the project.  It could also 
help demonstrate that all costs have been addressed. 

27. Will the State contract with 
an individual? 

The State will contract with a New Mexico registered 
business that is owned by an individual. 

28. Can RSP funds pay for 
labor by government 
employees that who would 
not otherwise be working 
for the agency, but instead 
are hired just to work on 
the project? 

Yes, if the agency asserts in writing that the employees are 
not part of an operating budget and are hired specifically as 
crew for the project. 

29. Are Pueblos considered 
government entities? 

Yes. 

30. Do government entities 
have to fill out and submit 
forms regarding campaign 
contribution disclosure, 
pay equity reporting, and 
employee health care? 

Public agencies (i.e. government entities) are not required to 
submit the campaign contribution disclosure form, the pay 
equity reporting, or the employee health coverage forms. See 
Paragraphs III.C.6-8 of on Pages 25-26 of the RFP.  Public 
agencies will get an automatic PASS on the evaluation 
criteria for these items.  
 
Private companies and non-government organizations are 
required to fill out and submit the forms for campaign 
contribution disclosure (Appendix C) and employee health 
care (Appendix G).  See the additional question below 
regarding the Pay Equity Reporting. 

31. Do applicants need to 
submit the pay equity form 
with their proposals? 

No. Paragraph III.C.8 on Page 26 of the RFP states: “The 
Offeror must agree with the requirements of reporting as 
defined in Section II.C.30.  The report is due at the time of 
contract award.  This requirement does not apply to Offerors 
which are public agencies.” 

32. Can RSP project 
implement permit 
requirements, for example 
Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer System Permits? 
 

Yes. Although RSP funds cannot be used for projects under 
administrative or judicial order, they can be used for projects 
that implement permit requirements. 
 

33. If the removal of jetty jacks 
is part of a project, can the 
Contractor take the jacks to 
the salvage yard and keep 
the salvage money? 

The Offeror should propose a fair and reasonable proposal 
for the removal, transport, and salvage of jetty jacks. 
Proposals should not include a use of funds that would 
violate the state antidonation clause.  

34. Where can we get a log of 
submitted proposals? 

The State Purchasing Division will keep that log and the log 
can be requested via the address on Page 3 of the RFP. 
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35. Where can we find out the 

list of winning proposals? 
Offerors will be notified directly by email. There will also be 
a press release and the list will be posted on the 
NMED/SWQB website at 
http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/swqb/RiverStewards/. 

36. Is submittal of a 
government resolution a 
requirement for a city or 
town that intends to submit 
a RSP proposal?  

Paragraph III.C.10 on Page 26 of the RFP states that 
Offerors may include letters of commitment/and or support 
with their proposal, including copies of government 
resolutions.  Copies of resolutions are recommended if the 
project commits government resources and/or is located on 
government property, because such resolutions provide 
assurance that the governing body is supportive of the 
project. 

37. If an organization plans to 
submit two proposals for 
the RFP, is there a way to 
identify which project is 
the higher priority for the 
Offeror? 

Proposals will be scored by the Evaluation Committee 
against the evaluation criteria and compared against other 
proposals.  An Offeror can state their priorities and 
intentions in a proposal. It will not affect the scoring but it 
could affect final project selections if both proposals by the 
same Offeror score high and the Committee wants to 
recommend only one of the proposals for selection. 

38. Does past performance 
with restoration projects 
count? 

Past performance is not a direct evaluation criterion. 

39. Will you provide a copy of 
the pre-proposal 
conference presentation to 
conference attendees?  

The presentation is available on the RSP website at 
http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/swqb/RiverStewards/. 
The questions that were asked at the conferences are 
included in this document so that all Offerors receive the 
same information even if they missed the pre-proposal 
conferences. 

40. Do Offerors have to submit 
hard copies or are 
electronic copies 
acceptable?  

Please see Pages 9 and 22 of the RFP for information about 
electronic submittal of proposals.  Offerors have the option 
of either: 1) submitting the proposal electronically using 
SciQuest (https://suppliers.sciquest.com/stateofnewmexico/) 
or: 2) submitting hard copies to the State Purchasing 
Division, including one original, one identical hard copy and 
two electronic copies (on two compact disks).   

41. Would a strategic plan 
from a Soil and Water 
Conservation District 
qualify as a local planning 
document? 

Yes, it would if it describes water quality or habitat 
improvement projects to be implemented. 

42. How does one obtain 
veteran’s or NM resident’s 
preference? 

Offerors can apply for the preference certification at the 
following website.  
http://www.tax.newmexico.gov/Businesses/in-state-veteran-
preference-certification.aspx 

43. What is the date that 
projects must be 
completed? 

Projects must be completed by June 30, 2018, the reversion 
date of the legislative appropriation. 

http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/swqb/RiverStewards/
http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/swqb/RiverStewards/
https://suppliers.sciquest.com/stateofnewmexico/
http://www.tax.newmexico.gov/Businesses/in-state-veteran-preference-certification.aspx
http://www.tax.newmexico.gov/Businesses/in-state-veteran-preference-certification.aspx
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44. If a project does not pass a

PASS/FAIL item in the
evaluation criteria, does
that mean the project will
not be funded?

That is correct.  A project will not be funded if it fails any of 
the PASS/FAIL criteria. 

45. What are the restrictions in
funding projects on private
property? How will you
decide the PASS/FAIL for
the antidonation
determination?

The Offeror must explain the public benefit of a project. The 
Evaluation Committee will pass projects that provide some 
benefit to the public but are in a grey area.  The projects are 
also subject a legal review during the contract approval 
process. 

46. Suppose a project requires
removal of soil from public
land. If the soil is relocated
to private land, would that
violate the antidonation
clause?

The Evaluation Committee will look at a proposal in its 
entirety. The Offeror should fully explain the public benefit 
any proposed actions as described in Paragraph IV.N of the 
RFP on Page 28: explain the public benefit that will be 
derived from working on privately owned land, any 
mitigating circumstances, and why working on private land 
is necessary to solve the water quality or habitat problem. 

47. If a proposal is submitted
through SciQuest, will the
Offeror receive a
confirmation that it was
received and was
complete?

The Offeror will receive a confirmation of submission from 
SciQuest. 

48. If a document is uploaded
to SciQuest, can the
Offeror delete or replace it
later?

Yes. The Offeror has the ability to delete, update or change a 
proposal prior to the RFP closing date/time.  The proposal is 
final and no changes can occur after the closing date/time 
(July 31, 2014 3:00pm MDT). 

49. What if the Offeror has
problems with the SciQuest
system?

The SciQuest website offers technical support by email 
at: technicalsupport@sciquest.com. 

50. Can one proposal include
multiple structures or
project locations?

Yes. The Offeror should be specific about what is being 
proposed at each site. 

51. If the Offeror proposes
several different things in
one project, and evaluators
don’t like one of them, is it
all or nothing?

The proposal will be evaluated as a whole.  In the evaluation 
process, the Evaluation Committee may recommend changes 
to the project. 

52. If a Pueblo is under an RSP
agreement with the State,
what will happen when the
Pueblo Governor changes?

From a contractual/agreement perspective, there is no action 
required when government leadership changes. 

53. What if we might have
other funds available for a
project but we don’t know
what they will be?

The Offeror should only rely on secured funds for the 
proposal budget. 

mailto:technicalsupport@sciquest.com
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54. Would the proposal get 

more points in the 
evaluation if the project 
involves youth groups in 
workshops? 

The involvement of youth groups in workshops may raise the 
proposal score with respect to Evaluation Criteria 4.d on 
Page 30 of the RFP. However, such workshops would need 
to be implementation workshops in which the youth actually 
work on the project, rather than being education and 
outreach workshops (education and outreach is unallowable 
expense for a severance tax bond project). 

55. Can a federal agency 
function as a subcontractor, 
for example where the 
agency has the expertise 
and equipment for 
earthmoving? 

Possibly, but there may be challenges with the concept of a 
federal agency functioning as a subcontractor: 1) the wages 
of government employees are unallowable expenses for a 
severance tax bond project;  and 2) federal agencies often 
cannot work on a reimbursable basis. 

56. Would NEPA document 
preparation (i.e., 
Categorical Exclusions, 
Biological Assessments, 
Environmental 
Assessments, etc.) be 
reimbursable with these 
monies, if it is part of a 
larger project that involves 
on-the-ground 
implementation? 

Yes. See Paragraph II.C.33 on Page 19 of the RFP under 
Eligible Reimbursement Items: “Costs to prepare permit 
applications, clearances and surveys that are required by 
law.”  NEPA documents (where applicable) are clearances 
that are required by law. 
 
 

 




